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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The following statement is made with a view to distinguishing respective responsibilities of the management
and those of the independent auditors in relation to the financial statements of “Premium Bank™ OJSC (the
n.B ]_1‘}I

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2023, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity
for the yzar then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"™).

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

Selecting suitable accoumting principles and applying them consistently:

Making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prodent;

Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements: and

Preparing the financial statements on a going coneern basis, unless it is inappropriate 1o presume that
the Bank will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls,
throughout the Bank;

Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the
financial position of the Bank, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the
Bank comply with IFRS;

Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards of
the Republic of Azerbaijan;

Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Bank; and
Detecting and preventing fraud, errors and other irregularities,

The finaneial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 were authorized for issue on May 17, 2024
by the Management Board of the Bank.,

On beh ‘/Mxnagt:mm;.Bi}ar(i:_
=l B [ '_
=~ Kamil Lntifg'vf ! | Mahir Najafov /
Chairman of the Management Board | Deputy Chairman of the Board / CFO
May 17, 2024 -, ? May 17,2024

Baku, the chuhlﬁi::'n{_.:'\zi:'_r"(fij‘i@n = Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Sharcholders, Supervisory Board and Management of “Premium Bank™ Open Joint Stock Company:
Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of “Premium Bank” Open Joint Stock Company (the “Bank™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),

Baxis for Opinian

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Fthics
Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the I[ESBA Code. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit Committee for the Financial Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financizal statements in accordance
with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue
as a going eoncern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

ASSURANGE ADVISDRY TAX LEGAI

Baker Tilly Audit Azerbaijen CJSC trading as Baker Tilly 15 8 member of the global network of Baker Tilly international Ltd, the members of
which are separate and independent legal entities.



@ bakertilly

Auditors' Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the linancial statements as 2 whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs will ulways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judesment and maintain professional
skepticism thraughout the audit, We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control;

+  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to conlinue as a going concern;

* LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
marner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thar we
identify during our audir.

Tl ”th( A?.er-&.m\:\a,\

May 17,2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan



“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise ingicated)

Motes December 31, December 31,
023 2022
ASSETS:
Cash and balances with Central Bank fs 171,176 85,912
Ralancas with other banks 7 38,588 165,351
Loars and advances (o custemers 8. 23 450,147 411,779
Property, equipment and right-of-use assets 9,23 9,872 5.632
Intangible assets 9 1,685 1,812
Deferred income 1ax asset 23 1.026 2,085
Onher assels 10 6,108 7374
Total assets 679,482 79,949
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Loans and deposits from banks and fnancial institutions 11,25 78,312 42,633
Deposits from customers 12,23 423,149 460,799
Other liabilities 13,23 14,364 11,796
Total liabilities 517,825 515,228
EQUITY:
Share capital 14 154,601 154,601
Ketamed carnings 700586 10,120
Total equity 161,657 164,721
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 679,482 679,949

On behalf of the_ﬂauagtmm} Board:

"‘#’;':;amil Lati . . -. \ 7

7 Mahir Najafov N K/
Chairman of the Management Board Deputy Chairman of the Boatrd / CFO
May 17,2024 : May 17, 2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerhaijan Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes oo pages 9«63 form an integral part of these financial stalements.



“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(In thousands of AZN, unless olherwise indicated)

Motes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Interest income 15. 23 31,695 30,679
Interest expense 15,23 (11,148) (10,574)
Net interest inconme 15,23 20,547 20,105
Recovery/[charge) of expected credit [osses on financial assets 21 2,401 (1.777)
Net interest income 22.948 18,328
Fee and commission income 17 15,175 14,886
Fee and commission expense 15 (9,353) (7,171)
Met gain on forelgn exchange operations 16 2,586 3,118
Operating profit 31,356 29,161
Administrative and general expensss 20,23 {18.792) (18.071)
Depreciation and amartization expensa 19,23 {2.6535) (2.240)
Other income, net 23 82
Profit before income tax 9932 8.932
Income tax expense 22 (2,876) (1.990)
Net profit for the year 7.056 6,942
Other camprehensive income for the vear &
Total comprehensive income for the year 7.056 6,942
Earnings per share attributable tn the owners of the Bank,
basic and diluted (expressed in AZN per share) 28 7.03 6.91
On behalf of the Management Board:
7 . -.FF'_'_'-
/ Ve \
Kamil Latifoy Mahir Najafoy R

Chairman of the Management Board Deputy Chairman of the Board / CFO

May |7, 2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

May 17, 2024
Baku. the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 9-63 farm an integral part of these linancial statements,



"PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
{In thousands of AZN, unfess oiherwise indicatad)

January 1, 2022

Total comprehensive income fior the year
Dividends declured

December 31, 2022

Totdl comprehensive income for the year
Dividends declored

December 31, 2023

— £

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
154,601 8,068 162,669
- 6,942 6,942
. {4.890) 14, 800)
154,601 10,120 164,721
70050 7.056
(10,120) (10.120)
154.601 7,056 161,657

<= Kamil Latifoy
Chairman of l]]l:'-_Mlll:lng_l:ml:nt Board

May 17, 2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

Mahir Najafov N 7
Deputy Chairman of the Board / CFO

May 17, 2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

I'he notes en pages 9-63 form an integral part of (hese financial statements.



“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating items:
Depreciation 2nd amortization expense 19
Recovery of expected credit 1nsses on balances with other banks 7
Chargedrecovery) of expected credit loss on guaraniess issued 13
{Recovery)/charge of cxpected credit losses on loans aod

advances (o customers B
Net change in accrued interest
Foreign currency translation gain, net
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Mandatory minimum reserve deposit with the CBAR
Amounts due from financial institutiong

[.oans and advances to customers

Restricted balances with the CHAR

Other assets

Deposits from customers

Other liahilities

Cash nsed in operating activities

Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for property and equipment
Payments for inlangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from loans and deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 11

Repayment of loans and deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 11

Repayment of principal portion of lzase liability 13

Dividends paid to the shareholders

Amounts received from shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
09932 B.932
2.635 2.240
(176} {926)
380 (989
(2,805} 36592
(593) 97
(18] (32)
24 .
(%) (15)
(27.603) {22,536}
(9447 (1.373)
203 711N
- (641
1,%43 (2.057)
(35,204) (67.265)
(2.776) 1,880
{55.036) (7.822)
(3,406) (3.228)
(58,442) (11,050)
(374) (843)
(297) (470)
2] 69
(630} (1.244)
12453 36,437
{31.8946) {30.856)
(1.655] (1,325}
(10,120 {4.800)
- 200
(11.218) {434)




“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{in thousands of AZN, uniess otherwise indicated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 78 {4,636
Effect of net change in accruad interest on cash and cash
equivalents (46) 52
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (70.278) (17.312)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, heginaing of the year 3 219.702 237014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. end of the year 5 149,424 219,702

Interest paid and received by the Bank during the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to AZN 10.930
thousand and AZN 30,884 thousand, respectively (December 31, 2022: AZN 11,070 thousand and
AZN 31.367 thousand, respectively),

On behalf of the Management Board:

> .
~— Kamil Latifov ' Mahir Najafov NS
Chairman of the Management Boar . Deputy Chairman of the Board / CFO
May 17. 2024 \ May 17, 2024
Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

The notes on pages 9-03 form an integral part of these financial statements,



“PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

INTRODUCTION
Legal status and nature of operations

“Premium Bank™ Open Joint Stock Company (the “Bank™) was established on January 6, 1994 and held
license no. 175 for commercial banking issued by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic (CBAR or
Central Bank). The activities of the Bank are regulated by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic. As at
December 31, 2023 the repistered address of the Bank is Hasan Aliyev Street 131A, AZ 1110, Baku, the
Republic of Azerbaijan,

The principal activity of the Bank is providing commercial banking services to legal entities and physical persons,
I'ne Bank has five branches and one service point. The Bank operates a network of 45 (December 31, 2022 54)
automatic teller machines. The Baik has 179 employees as at December 31, 2023 {December 31, 2022: 165
employees).

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the following shareholders owned the issued share capital of the Bank:

December 31, December 31,

2023, % 2022, %
“VIP Aviation Services Company™ LLC 15.22 1522
Ms. Zarifa Hamzayeva 84.47 84 .47
Ms. Elvira Ahmadava 031 .31
100.00 100.00

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial stalements for the vear ended December 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (“1ASB™) and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC™).

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Bank is a going concern and will
continue in operation for the loreseeable future.

Management views the Bank as continuing in business for the foreseeahle future with neither the intention
nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors pursuant to laws or
regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that
the Bank will be uble to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Some
financial reporting frameworks contain an explicit requirement for manzgement lo make a specific
assessment of the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, and standards regarding matters lo be
considered and disclosures to be made in connection with going concern.

Management’s assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a judgment, at a particular
point in time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.

Other basis of presentation criteria

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Azerbaijani Manat (“AZN"). unless otherwise
indicated. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, excepl
medsurement at fair value of certain financial instruments.

The Bank maintains its accounting records in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Azerbaijan.
9



“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{In thousands of AZN, unless othenwise fndicated)

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to IAS 12 — In May 2023, the Board
issued anendments to 1AS 12, which introduce a mandatory exception inIAS 12 from recognizing and disclosing
deferred tax assets and liabilitics related to Pillar Two income taxes are effective immediately upon issuance.
These amendments provide a mandatory exception in LAS 12, exempting entities from recognizing and disclosing
deferred tax assets and liabilities associated with Pillar Two income laxes. The amendments clarify that IAS 12
applics to income taxes arising from legislation implementing the Pillar Two Model Rules by the Organization
for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). While disclosure requirements are effective later, entities
must disclose their application of the exception, separately detail current tax expenses related to Pillar Two
income taxes, and provide information on exposure to Pillar Two income taxes for effective and future periods.
Ihe transitional provisions apply immediately and retrospectively, with specific disclosure requirements
applicable for annual reporting periods starting on or after January 1, 2023, excluding any interim period ending
on or before December 31, 2023,

Unless otherwise disclosed, the new standards did not have a maierial effect on the financial statements of
the Banlk.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Bank

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, other than the Standards and Interpretations adopted by
the Bank in advance of their cffective dates, the following Interpretations were in issue but not et effective,

IASB has issued “lLease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments tv IFRS 16)" with
amendments that clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that
satisly the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(Amendments to IFRS 16) requires a scller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a
leaseback in a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognizing in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of'a lease. The amendments are effective for annual reporting,
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to IAS I: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - In January 2020 and
October 2022, the TASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 1o specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

o What is meant by a right to defer settlement;
s That aright 1o defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;
*  That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right;

* That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liahility is itself an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its elassification,

In addition. a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from & loan

agreement is classified as non-current and the entity's right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance
with future covenants within twelve months.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 and must
be applied retrospectively.

In May 2023 1ASB published “Supplier Finance Arrangements” (Amendment to TAS 7 and IFRS 7)
These amendments require disclosures to enhance the transparency of supplier finance arrangements and
their effects on an entity’s labilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. The disclosure requirements
are the TASB's response to investors® concerns that some companies’ supplier finance arrangements are not
sufficiently visible, hindering investors' analysis. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with transitional reliefs in the first year.

11



“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)

{In thousands of AZN, unfess oltherwise indicated)

In August 2023 [ASB amended 1AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” to clarify
when a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how a company estimates a spot rate when a
currency lacks exchangeability. An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has 4 (ransaction or an
operation in a foreign currency that is not exchangeable into another curreney at a measurement date for a
specified purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is an ability 1o obtain the other currency, with a
normal administrative delay, and the transaction would take place through a market or exchange mechanism
that creates enforceable rights and obligations. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginming on or after January 1. 2025, with the option for early adoption.

On April 9, 2024, the IASB issued a new standard — 1IFRS 18, ‘Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements’ — in response to investors’ concerns ahout the comparability and transparency of entities’
performance reporting. The new requirements introduced in [FRS 18 will help to achieve comparability of
the financial performance of similar entities, especially related 1o how ‘operating profit or loss' is defined.
The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to:

o the structurs of the statement of profit or loss;

» required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are
reported outside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures); and

o cnhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements
and notes in general.

IFRS 18 will replace TAS 1: many of the other existing principles in IAS 1 are retained, with limited changes,
IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, but it might
change what an entity reports as its ‘operating profit or loss®.

IFRS 18 will apply for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027 and also applies to
comparative information,

In May, 2024 the [ASD has published the new standard IFRS 19 “Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures™, which permits a subsidiary to provide reduced disclosures when applying
IFRS Accounting Standards in its financial statements, IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that are eligible
and sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries thar elect to apply it.

An entity is only permitted to apply IFRS 19 when:

e it isasubsidiary;
s it does not have public accountability, and

* its ultimate or any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial statements available for public
use that comply with [FRS Aceounting Standards.

The new standard is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2027 with earlier
application permitted.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of
Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — The amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS
28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of sssets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that pains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a fransaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture.



“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{in thousands of AZN, unless ctherwise indicated)

Similarly, pains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retzined in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to
fair value are recognized in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture. The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the
IASB; however, earlier application of the amendments is permitted.

Unless otherwise disclosed, the new standards are not expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Bank.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
applied in the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, except for the effect of
naw adopted standards. if any.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires management to make
Judgmenis, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assels, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Information
about significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and critical management judgments in applying accounting
policies and changes in estimation uncertainty and critical management judgments that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in Note 4.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Azerbaijan Manat (AZN), which is also Bank’s functional
currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency. using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dales of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items at year-end exchange rates
are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction (not retranslated). Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.

For the purpose of translation of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
the following year-end exchange rates have been used:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
ALNT LISD 1.7000 1.7000
AZN/T EUR 1.RT766 1L.B114
ALN/1 GBP 2.1043 2.0477
AN/ RUB 00188 0.0230

15



“PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{in thousands of AZN, uniess otherwise indicated)

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Bank hecomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the Bank
commirs to purchase or sell the asset,

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.
Financial assels and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.
Classification and measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is ¢lassified as measured: at amortized cost, Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCT) or Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost ilit meets both the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to colleet contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

o the assetis held within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect 10
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This eleclion is made on an investment-by-investment
hasis.

All ather financial assets are classilied as measured at FVTPL.,

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as al FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio
level hecause this best reflects the way the business is being managed and information is provided 10

munagement,

14



“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

The information considered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the
liahilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evalvated and reported to the Bank’s management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

» how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about the future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation,
but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial assets
is achieved and how cash Nows are realized,

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, *principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Profit” 1s defined as consideration forthe time value of'money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular peried of time and for other basic financing risks
and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This mcludes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

& contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

e leverape features:

» prepayment and extension terms;

¢ terms that limit the Bank's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements): and

e features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest rate.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Classificarion and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank's financial liabilities include loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions, deposits
from customers and certain other liabilities. Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized
cost using the effective interest method,

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probubility-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

* financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date; as the present value of all cash

shortfalls (ie. the difference between the cash Oows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive):

15



“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

= financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flaws;
s undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows

that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a
new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:

= [f'the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset. then the expected cash
Mows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shorttalls from the
existing asset,

o [f the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair
value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognilion. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial
asset. The cash shortfalls are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date
using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset,

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date. the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt

financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial nsset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

& breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise:
it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Purchased or originated credit impaired assets (POCI)

POC] assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at
fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit-adjusted
EIR. Life time ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subseguent change in the
ECL.

Revolving facilities

The Bank’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft and credit cards facilities,
in which the Bank has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities at a short notice. The Bank does not
limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period
that reflects the Bank's expectations of the customer behavior, its likelihood of default and the Bank’s future
risk mitigation procedures. which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities. Based on past
experience and the Bank's expectations, the period over which the Bank calculates ECLs for these products,
is estimated based on the period over which the Bank is exposed to credit risk and where the credit losses
would not be mitigated by management actions.
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Wrile-off

Assels carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVYOUCT are written off {(either partially or in full) when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Bank has exhausted all legal
and remedial efforts to recover from the customers. However, financial assets that are written off could still

be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank's procedures for recovery of amounts
due,

Reversals of impairment loss

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be relared
objectively to an event eccurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess is written back by reducing

the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The write back is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial guarantees and loan commiiments

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specitied payments to reimburse the holders
for a loss they incur because a specified deblor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. The financial guarantee lability is carried at amortized cost when payment under
the contraet has become probable,

*Loans commitments® are firm irrevocable commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and
conditions. Financial guarantees issued or irrevocable commitments to provide credit are initially measured
at fair value and their initial fair value is amortized over the 1ife of the guarantee or the commitment.

Subsequently, they are measured at the higher of this amortized amount and the amount of loss allowance.
Loans and advances to customers

Loans to custemers are recorded when the Bank advances money to purchase or originate a loan due from
a customer, Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the Bank measures loans to
customers at amortized cost. They are initially measured atl fair value plus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Impairment allowances are determined based on the forward-looking ECL models.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are items, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
balances with Central Bank and balances with other banks with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position.

Property, equipment, and right-of-use assets

Property and equipment are initially recognized al acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Bank’s manapement. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model and are
stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognized on reducing balance method, except for depreciation of right-of-use assets which
is recognized using straight-line method over the period of respective lease liabilities, to write down the cost
less estimated residual value of property and equipment. The following estimated useful lives are applied:
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Furniture and equipment 5 years
Compuiers 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 vears
Other assets 5 vears
Leasehold improvements over the term of the underlying lease
Right-of-use assets over the term of the underlying le=ase

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually,
whether or not the asset is revalued.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in profit or loss within “other
income™.

Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
assel is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term.

If the ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Bank at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated uselul life of the asset, The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the related leased asset. Expenses related to repairs
and renewals are charged when incurred and included in operating expenses unless they gualify for
capitalization.

Repaossessed collaterals

Repossessed collateral represents non-financial essets acquired by the Bank in settlement of overdue loans.
These assets are initially recognized at lower of their previous carrving amount or fair value less costs to
sell and are included in other assets. These assets are suhsequently measured and accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.

Intangible nssets

Intangible assets include acquired software used in operations. They are accounted for using the cost model
whereby capitalized costs are amortized on a reducing balance method over their estimated useful lives, as
these assels are considered finite. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In

addition, they are subject to impairment testing. The useful life of soflware is 10 years,

Costs associated with maintaining computer soflware, i.e. expenditure relating to patches and other minor
updates as well as their installation, is expensed as incurred.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognized in profit or loss within 'other income'.
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Impairment of non-financial assels

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a resull, some assels are lested individually for
impairment and some arc tested at cash-generating unif level.

All individual assets or cash-generaling units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating, unit's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use,
To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating
unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash lows,

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognized may no
longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its
CArrying amount,

QOther assets

Other assets are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions

Loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions are recorded when money or other assets arc
advanced to the Bank by counterparty banks. The non-derivative liability is carried at amortized cost. IT the
Bank purchases its own debt, the liability is removed from the statement of financial position and the
difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in gains or
losses arising from retirement of debt,

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are non-derivative liabilities to individuals, state or corporate customers and are
carried at amortized cost.

Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Bank as a lessee
The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases

and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments 10 be made vver the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an 1ndex or a rate, and amounis expecled 1o be paid under residual value puarantees. The lease payments
also nclude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Bank and
payments of penalties for terminating the Jease, if the lease term reflects the Bank exercising the option to
terminate.

Varizble lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they
are incurred o produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is inercased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if
there is a modification. a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option 1o purchase the underlying asset,

Other liabilities

Other liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using
the effective interest rate method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classificd as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

The ability of the Bank to declare and pay dividends is subject to the rules and regulations of Azerbaijan
legislation.

Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in the period
when they are declared.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources from the Bank and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal ar constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events,

Provision for guaranice claims and other off-balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and
reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer
aceounts. Charge to profit and loss account is stated net of expected recoveries, Provisions are not
recognized for future operating losses.

Pravisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is
considercd improbable or remote. no liability is recognized, unless it was assumed in the course of a business
combination.

Retirement and other benefit abligations

In accordance with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan state pension system
provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current total payments
to staff. This expense is charged in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon retirement all retirement
benefit payments are made by pension funds selected by employees, The Bank does not have any penasion
arrangements separate from the state pension system of the Republic of Azerbaijan. In addition, the Bank
has no posi-retirement benefits or other significant compensated henefits requiring accrual.

Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
“effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument 1o:

* the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
» the amortized cost of the tinancial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asscts, a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including expected
credit losses,

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, Transaction costs include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Fee and commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset
or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Loan origination fees, loan servicing fees and other fees that are considered to be integral to the overall
profitability ef a loan, together with the related transaction costs, are deferred and amortized to interest
income over the estimated life of the financial instrument using the effective interest method.

Other fee and commission income — including account servicing fees, investment management fees, sales
commission, placement fees and syndication fees — is recognized as the related services are performed. Ifa
loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, then the related loan commitment fee
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the commitment period,

A contract with a customer that results in a recognized financial instrument in the Bank's financial
statements may be partially in the scope of [FRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15, If this is the case.
then the Bank first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is in the scope of
IFRS 9 and then applies IFRS 15 to the residual,

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations in confracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue
recognition policies.
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Type of Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance Revenue recognition under
service abligations, including significant payment lerms TFRS 15
| The Bank provides banking services to retail and corporate Revenue related 1o transactions is
| customers, foreign currency transactions, cash operations, recognized at the point in time
settlements und eredil card transactions, when the transaction takes place,

Transaction-hased fees for interchange, foreipn currency

Retail and transactions are charged 1o the customer’s account when
corporate transaction takes place.
banking : ——— . :
service The Bunk charges a commission fee to the customers for the | Since, the customer
puarantes letters issued simultaneously receives and

consumes the benefits provided
by the entity's performance as the
| entity performs, Bank recognized
| FEVENUES OVer ime.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly 1o transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the
services are received,

Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon wilisation of the service or at the date of their
origin.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred tax expense.

Current

The current tax expense is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other vears and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible, The
Bank’s current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
during the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deterred tax is the 1ax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
ol taxable profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of other assets and liabilitics in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when it relates 1o items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset and reported net on
the statement of financial position if:

» The Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities: and

* Deferred tax asscts and the deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Azerbaijan Republic also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Bank’s activities. These taxes
are included as a component of operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share are determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Bank by the
weighted average number of participating shares outstanding during the reporting vear.

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of financial assets and liabilities and the resultant allowances
for impairment and fair values. In particular, considerable judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowances required
for impaired loans to customers. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

The following are significant management judgements in appiving the accounting policies of the Bank that
have the most significant effect on the financial statements. Critical estimation uncertainties are described
in Nore 4.

Judgements and estimates related to financial instruments

Judgements made in applying accounting policies that have most significant effects on the amount
recognized in the financial statements of the period ended December 31, 2023 are as follows:

» Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets ars held and
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial assets are solely payment of principal and
interest of the principal amount outstanding,

* Calculation of expected credit loss (ECL): changes to the assumptions and estimation uncertainties that
have a significant impact on ECL for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 pertain to the changes
introduced as a result of adoption of IFRS 9: Financial instruments. The impact is mainly driven by
inputs, assumptions and techniques used for ECL calculation under IFRS 9 methodology.

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for ECL calculation — IFRS 9 Methodology

Key concepls in IFRS 9 that have the most significant impact and require a high level of judgment, as
considered by the Bank while determining the impact assessment. are:
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Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is done on a relative basis. To assess whether the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since origination, the Bank compares the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset at the reporting date to the corresponding risk of default
al origination. using key risk indicators that are used in the Bank's existing risk management processes.

The assessment of significant increases in credit risk is being performed at least quarterly for each individual
exposure based on below mentioned factors, If any of the following factors indicates that a significant
increase in credil risk has occurred, the instrument will be moved from Stage 1 to Stage 2:

1. The Bank has stablished thresholds for significant increases in credit risk relative 1o initial recognition.

2. Additional qualitative reviews have been performed to assess the staging results and make adjustments,
as necessary, to better reflect the positions which have significantly increased in risk,

3. TFRS 9 contains a rebutiable presumption that instruments which are 30 days past due have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk.

Movements between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are based on whether financial assets are credit impaired as at the
reporting date.

Macroeconomic Factors, Forward Looking Information (FLI) and Multiple Scenarios

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increasss in
credit risk must consider information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and
supportable [orceasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-
looking information requires significant judgment.

PD, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure At Default (EAD) inputs used to estimate Stage 1 and
Stage 2 credit loss allowances are modelled based on the macroeconomic variables (or changes in
macroeconomic variables) that are most closely correlated with credit losses in the relevant portfolio.
Management overlay is also used to align the macroeconomics factors with the current condition of portfolio
based on best management estimate and information. The estimation of expected credit losses in Stage 1
and Stage 2 is a discounted probability weighted estimate that considers a minimum of three future
MACTOECONOMIC SCenarios.

In view of the very fluid and developing considerations, ascertaining the reliability and reasonableness of
any forward-looking information is challenging. Notwithstanding this, the Bank continues to recognize the
likely impact of this crisis on market credit environment and will continue to monitor the changes. including
macreecenomic forecast and consider adjustments ta ECL appropriately,

Definition of default

I'he dehinition of default used in the measurement of expected credit losses and the assessment to determine
movement between stages is consistent with the definition of default used for internal credit risk
management purposes. IFRS 9 does not define default but contains a rebuttable presumption that default has
occurred when an exposure is greater than 90 days past due.

Expected life

When measuring ECL., the Bank must consider the maximum contractuzal period over which the Bank is
exposed to credit risk. All applicable contractual terms are considered when determining the expected life,
including prepayment oplions and extension and rollover options. For certain revolving credit facilities that
do not have a fixed maturity, the expected life is estimated based on the period over which the Bank is
exposed to credit risk
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Governance

In addition to the existing risk management [ramewaork, the Bank has established an internal commities to
provide oversight (o the IFRS 9 impairment process. The Commitiee comprises of senior representatives
from Finance, Risk Management and Ecoromics and is responsible for reviewing and approving key inputs
and assumptions used in our expecred credit loss estimates. I also assesses the appropriateness of the overall
allowance resuls to be included in the financial statements. The following other principal criteria are also
used to determine that there is objeective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:

» the viubility of the customer’s business model and its capability to trade successfully out of financial
difficulties and generate sufficient cash flow to service its debt obligations;
the realisable value of security (or other credit mitigations) and likelihood of successful repossession;
the likely deduction of any costs involved in recavery of amounts outstanding;
the borrower experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by borrower's financial
information that the Bank obtains;
the borrower considers bankruptey or a financial reorganisation; or

= the adverse change in the payvment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the international or
local economic conditions that impact the borrower,

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

The extent to which deferred income tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the
probability of the Bank®s future taxable income against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic
limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and

measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may substantially
differ.

Useful lives of depreciable and amortizable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets which inelude property and
equipment, and intangible assets at each reporting date, hased on the expected utility of the assets to the
Bank. Actual results, however, may vary due to technical obsolescence, particularly relating to software and
IT equipment.

Impairment of property and equipment and intangible assets

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount hy which the asset's or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds ils recoverable amounl. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expectad future cash flows
management makes assumptions about future operating results. These assumptions relate to future events
and circumstances. The actual results may vary, and may cause sipnificant adjustments to the Bank’s assets
within the next financial year.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to
market risk and the appropriate adjustment 1o asset-specific risk factors,

bJ
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{In thousands of AZN, unfess otfierwise indicated)

Allowance for ECL on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advanees to customers are measured at amortized cost less allowance for ECL, The estimation
of allowances for ECL involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates. The Bank cstimates
allowances for ECL with the objective of maintaining provisions at a level believed by management to be
sufficient 1o absorb losses incurred in the Bank's loan portfolio. The calculation of provisions is mainly
made using ECL model and also time base criteria determined by the applicable prudential regulations.

Provisions

Provisions are raised hased on management’s estimates from information available surrounding particular
transactions. Prudence is exercised when estimating provisions so as nol to materially overstate the Bank's
reported net income and understates its liabilities.

Contingent liability arising from litigations

Due to the nature of its operations, the Bank may be involved in litigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. Provision for contingent liabilities arising from litigations is based on the probability of outflow
of economic resources and reliability of estimating such outflow. Such matters are subject 10 many
uncertainties and the outcome of individual matters is not predictable with assurance. Fstimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are applied prospectively.

Current taxes

Azerbaijani tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations and changes occur
frequently. Further, the interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activity of the Bank may not coincide with that of management. As a result, tax authorities may challenpe
transactions and the Bank may be assessed additional 1axes, penalties and interest, which can be significant.
Periods remain open to review by the tax and customs authorities with respect to tax liabilities for three
calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows include the fallowing components:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Cash and balances with the CBAR [(Nole 6) 16316 58,715
Balances with other banks (Note 7) 33, 108 160987
Total cash and cash equivalents 149,424 219,702




“PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 {Continued)
{in thousanas of AZN, unlass otherwise indicated)

CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CBAR

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Cash in hand 26,912 16.585
Short-term deposits with the CBAR with original maturities of less than 90

days 35,000 25,000

Other balonces with the CBAR 54,398 17,126

Acerued interest income on short-term deposits with the CBAR 6 4

Included in cash and cash cquivalents (Note 5) 116,316 58.715

Mandutory minimum reserve deposit with the CBAR 54,219 26,536

Restricted balances with the CBAR 61 641

Total cash and halances with the CBAR 171,176 85,912

The mandatory minimum reserve deposit is a non-interest bearing deposit calculated in accordance with
regulations issued by the CBAR and whose withdrawal ahility is restricted. Reserves are measured in
accordance with regulations issued by the CBAR and depends on the level of customer funds attracted.
Balances with the CBAR carry 6.5% interest rate per annum (December 31, 2022: 6.25%).

All cash and balances with the CBAR are in Stage 1 and their ECL is not material as at December 31, 2023
and 2022,

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

December 31, December 31,
2023 10212
Correspondent accounts 33,108 145,939
Shart-term deposits with ather banks with original maturitics of less than 90
days - 15,000
Accrued interest income on shart-term deposits with other banks - 48
Inciuded in cash and eash equivalents (Note §) 33,108 160,987
Amounts due from financial institulions 5.480 4,540
Less: Allowance Tor expected credit losses - (176)
Total balances with other banks 38,588 165,351

Balances with other banks carry interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 1% per annum (December 31, 2022: 2%
1o 4%),

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank had no balance with any bank exceeding 10% of equity (December 31,
2022: two hanks). The gross value of these balances as at December 31, 2023 was zero (December 31, 2022:
AZN 148,061 thousand).

All balances with other banks are in Stage 1 and their ECL is not material as at December 31, 2023 and
2022,
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“PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)

(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

Allowance for expected credit losses

December 31, December 31,
023 022
As at January 1 (176) (1,102)
Recovery for the vear 176 426
Az at December 31 - (176}
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Loans and advances 471,860 436,968
Accrued intersst income 2564 1.544
Gross carrying amount 474,230 438,514
Less; allowanee for expected credit losses (24.0183) {26.735)
Net carrving amount 450,147 411,779

Loans and advances to customers carry interest rates ranging from 3% to 25% per annum (December 31,
2022: 4% 10 25%).

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank had four borrowers or groups of connected borrowers (December 31,
2022: four borrowers) with gross loan balances exceading 10% of equity. The gross value of these loans as
at December 31, 2023 was AZN 361,843 thousand (December 31, 2022: AZN 374,779 thousand),

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amount %% of total Amount % of total
gross loans gross loans
Loans to corporate customers
Transportation 363.269 76.60 377,183 £6.02
Construction 12.687 2.68 12,634 2.88
Trading and service 8387 177 661 1,52
Agriculture [E] 0.13 720 0.16
Total loans to corporate customers 384,962 8118 397,198 90.58
Loans o individuuals
Mortgage loans? 67,288 14.19 25,080 6.63
Consumer |nans 21,980 4.63 12,226 2719
Tutal lvans to individuals 89,268 18.82 41,316 9.42
(:ross loans to customers 474,230 100.00 438,514 100.00
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (24,083) (26.735)
Net loans to customers 450,147 411,779
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

*On October 31, 2023, the mortgage loans in the amount of AZN 34,948 were transferred from Muganbank
OJSC as a result of the termination of later’s bank licenss.

Gross carrying amount

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of gross carrying amount
of loans and advances to customers.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Loany and advances to custamers
As al Januwary 1, 2023 397,202 38,602 2,710 438,514
New financial assets criginated or purchused 157.122 - - 157,122
Assets repaid or derecognized (121.968) (156) (253) (122.377)
Net change in accrued interest 623 106 87 818
Other movement - - 151 153
Transfer to Stage | 62 (62) . -
Transfer to Stage 2 (3,654) 3.654 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (471) {150} 1,121 -
Write-offs - - w =
As at December 31, 2023 428, 418 41,904 3818 474,230

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Louny and advances fo customers
As at January 1, 2022 490,333 16,027 3471 S09.831
Wew financial assets originated or purchased 79,042 - - 70,042
Assets repuid or derecognized (149,293) o (929) (150,213)
Net change in accrued interest (204) (101) 26 (209}
Other movement - - 95 as
Transfer to Stage 1 1,002 (E31) (151) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (23.578) 23,578 -
Transfer to Stage 3 (72) (Bl 132 =
Foreign currency movement (28) - - [28)
Write-ofTs . 5 (4) (4)
As at December 31, 2022 397,202 38,602 2,710 438.514

Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Total
Logns and advances to corporate eustomers
Asg at January 1, 2023 358,950 38,248 - 397198
Mew financial assets originated or purchased 82,275 - - 82,275
Assets repaid or derecugnirzed (95,007) - - (93,007)
Net change in accrued interest 416 4] - 496
Transfer o Stage 2 (620 620 g -
As al December 31, 2023 346,014 35,948 - 384,962
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Lovins ened advances to corporate customers
As at Januvary 1, 2022 459,712 15,736 - 475,448
New financial assets originated or purchased 67,287 - - 67,287
Assets repaid or derecognized (145212) 43 - (145,169)
Net change in accrued interest (239) {10 - (340)
Transfer to Stage 1 720 (720) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (23,280) 23,290 - -
Fnreign currency movemenl {28) - = (28)
As at December 31, 2022 J5R.950) 38,248 - 397,198

Stape 1 Stapge 2 Stage 3 Taotal
Loasus and advarces fo individuals
As at January 1, 2023 38,252 354 2,710 41,316
Mew finanzial assets originated or purchased 74,847 - - 74,847
Assels repaid or derecognized 126.961) (156} {253) [27.370)
Met change in accrued interest 209 16 27 322
Other movement - - 153 153
Transfer to Stage 1 62 (62) . -
Transfer to Slage 2 (3,034) 3,034 =
Transter to Stage 3 (971} (150} 1,121 -
Ag at December 31, 2023 82,404 3,046 3818 89,268

Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Loans ana advances 1o Individuals
As at January 1, 2022 30,621 m 34N 14,383
New financial assets originated or purchased 11,755 - - 11,755
Assets repaid or derecognized (4,081) (34) (929) (3.044)
Net change in accrued inlerost 35 - D6 131
Other movement - e o3 95
Transfer to Stage 1 282 (131) {151) -
Transfer to Stage 2 [288) 288 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (72) (60) 132 *
Write-offs = s 4) (4)
As at December 31, 2022 38.252 354 2,710 41.316

Allowance for expected credit losses

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the allowance for

expected credit losses of loans and advances to cuslomers.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Lacns and advances 10 ciesi oiters
As at Januwary 1, 2023 (23,001) (1,096) {2,638) {26,735)
MNew lnancial assets originated or purchased {1,217} - (1.917)
Net remeasurement of allowance for expeeted eredit
losses 4,173 453 96 4722
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs - - (153} {153}
Transfar to Stage | (1 1 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 74 {74) = s
Transfer to Stage 3 155 16 (169) -
As at December 31, 2023 (20,519 {700} (2.864) (24,083)
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans and avances to cusiomers
As at January I, 2022 (1%,121) (381) (3,450} {22,952)
New financial assets originated or purchased (5,174) - - (5,174)
Net remeasurement of allowance for expecied credit
losses 00 2] an1 1,482
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs - - (95} (95)
Transfer to Stage | (3) 1 2 -
Transfer to Stage 2 7 (797) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 - all (60} -
Write-offs - - 4 -
As at Decemher 31, 2022 {23,001) (1,096) (2,638) (26,735)
Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Total
LI‘.-’I:J'H.!' E?ﬂdﬂd\f’{!ﬂl‘.‘ﬁ& fo E:HFF'I‘JIUF& CUSILRery
As at January 1, 2023 {22,933) {1,096) - (24,029)
New financial assets originated or purchased (1,555) - - (1,555)
Net remeasurement of allowanee for expected credit
losses 4,304 46k - 4,772
Transfer to Stage 2 5 (5 . -
As at December 31, 2023 {20,179} (633) - (20.812)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loany and advances ta corporarte customers
As at Januvary 1, 2022 (18,995) {373) - (19.368)
New financial assels originated or purchased (5,144) - - (5,144)
Net remeasurement of allowance {or expected credit
losses 409 74 - 483
T'ransfer to Stage 2 797 (797) = *
As at December 31, 2022 (22,933) (1,096) - {24,029}
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans and advances ro individuals
As at January 1. 2023 (68) - {2.638) (2,706)
New financial assets originated or purchased (362) - - (362)
Net remeasurement of allowance for expecied credit
losses (131) (13) 96 (50)
Unwinding of discount on present value ol ECLs - - {153) (153)
Transfer to Stage | il 1 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 9 {59) = &
Transter to Stage 3 153 16 {169) -
As at December 31, 2023 (340) (67) {2,864) {3.271)




“PREMIUM BANK" OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless ofherwise indicated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tutal

Loans and advances to individuals
As at January 1, 2022 (126) {8) {3,450) (3.584)
New financial assets criginated or purchased (30) - 130}
Mel remeasurement of allowance for expeeted credit

losses 91 (53) 961 999
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs - - {93) (95)
Transfer to Stage | (3 1 2 -
Transfer 1o Stage 3 - Al (60 -
Write-ofls - - 4 4
As at December 31, 2022 (68) - (2,638) (2,706)

Credit quality analysis

The following tables set out information about the credit quality of loans and advances to customers as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, Unless specially indicated, the amounts in the tables represent gross carrying

amounts.
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Logns and asvances o cusiomery
Mot overdue 427,400 39,688 440 467,534
Overdue less than 30 days 1.012 216 ¥ 1,228
Dverdue 30-83 days - 2,090 139 2,229
Overdue 90-179 days - 388 b8
Overdug 180-360 days 133 153
Owerdue more than 360 days 2,698 2.608
Total gross loans to customers 428,418 41,994 3818 474,230
Less: allowance for expected credil

losses (20,519 (7007 {2.564) (24.083)
Carrying amount as at

December 31, 2023 407,899 41,294 954 450,147

Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans aned aodvances fo cusiomers
Mot overdue 396,094 38248 - 434,342
Overdue less than 30 days 1,108 - - 1,108
Overdoe 30-89 days £ 354 - 354
Overdue 90-179 days - - 72 72
Owverdue 180-360 davs = - .
Overdue more than 360 davs - - 2638 2.638
Tatal gross loans to costomers 307202 35,602 2,710 438.514
Less: allowance for expected eredit

fosses [23.001) {1.0196) (2.638) (26,735)
Carrying amount as af

December 31, 2022 374,201 37,506 72 411,779
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LUITH.F Ei‘"'ﬂr r:a’\-‘am‘es i fprparcrfe
CUSIOMErs

Naot overdue

Overdue less than 30 days
Orverdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue | 80-360 davs
Overdue more than 360 days

Total pross loans to customers

Less: allowsanee for expecled eredit
losses

Carrying amount as at
December 31, 2023

Loans and advances ta cerporate
CUSTmErs

Not overdue

Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 3(-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Onverdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days

Total gross loans to customers

Less: allowance for expected credit
losses

Carrving amount as at
December 31, 2022

Loans and advances 1o individuals

Mot overdue

Overdue less than 30 dovs
Ovwerdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Owerdue 180-360 duys
Overdue more than 360 davs

Total gross loans to customers
Less: allowanee [or expected credit
losses

Carrying amount as at
December 31, 2023

Stage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3 Total
346,014 38,948 - 384.962
346,014 38,948 - 384,962
(20,179) (633} (20,812)
325,835 38,315 - 364,150

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
358,950 38,248 - 397,198
158,950 38,248 - 397198
{22.933) (1.0%6) = (24.029)
336,017 37,152 - 373,169

Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Tolal

81,392 T40 435 82,571
1.012 216 - 1,228

- 2,090 139 2,229

- s 38R 3K

- - 154 154

= - 26098 2.698
82,404 3,046 3818 89,168
(340} (67) (2.864) (3.271)
82.064 2,979 954 85,997

L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unfess otfierwise indicated)

Laans and advances to individuals

Mot overdue

Overdue less than 30 days
Ohverdue 30-89 days
Ohverdue B0-179 days
Overdue 180-360 dayvs
Overdue more than 260 days

Total gross loans to cusfomers

Less: allowance lor expected credit
losses

Carrying amount as at
December 31, 2022

Collateral analysis

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stuge 3 Total
37.144 - - 3144
1,108 - - [,108
. 354 - 354
, 3 72 72
% 2,638 2,638
38,252 354 2,710 41,316
(68) - (2.638) (2,706)
38,184 354 T2 38,610

The following table provides information on collateral securing loans and advances 1o customers, net of
impairment, by lypes of collateral as at December 31, 2023.

Value of collateral held

Gross Loss Carrying (Cash and Movahle Immovable Tatal
carrying allowance amount deposits property property
amount
Loans to
corporate
customers
Transportation 363,264 {20,604) 342,603 76,500 55,200 114,599 246.299
Construction 12.687 (200) 12,487 12.957 - 12,557
Trading and
service 8.187 i 8386 14,450 41 14,491
Agriculture 619 {5) (L] 1,700 - - 1,700
l.oans to
individuals
Muortgage loans 67,288 [260] 67,028 - - 104,347 104.347
Consumer loans _ 21950 (3,013 18,957 38.0a5 - T.021 45,087
Total loans to
CUustomers 474,220 (24, 083) 450,147 120,716 a8, 157 216,008 424 881
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The following table provides information on collateral securing loans and advances to customers, net of
impairment, by types of eollateral as at December 31, 2022.

Value of collateral held

Gross Loss Carrying Cash and Maovahle Immovable Total
carrying allowance amouwnt deposits property property
amount
Loans to
carporate
customers
Transportation 377,183 (23,%02) 353281 - 33,200 93,634 145,834
Construction 12,634 {127 12,507 - 8,744 - 8,744
Trading and
service f.661 - 6,660 | 15.271 - 41 15,212
Agriculure 720 = 720 1.571 - - 1,571
Loans to
individuals
Muortgage loans 29,090 (5) 20,085 - - 42,297 42.297
Consumer loans 12,226 (2,701) 3,525 42,435 - 2582 45,017
Total loans to
customers 438,514 {26,735) 411,779 8277 63,944 138,554 261,775
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“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unfess otherwise indicated)

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, included in property and equipment were [ully depreciated assats in the
amount of AZN 1,651 thousand and AZN 1,177 thousand. respectively.

The Bank has recorded lease liabilities as per IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ at the present value of remaining lease
payments in respect of buildings obtained on rent. For further detail, please refer to Note 13.

There has been no impairment in the carrying amount of property and equipment as at December 31, 2023
(December 31, 2022 nil). No property and equipment have been pledged as security for liabilities.

OTHER ASSETS
December 31, Devember 31,
2023 2022
Other Minancial assets:
Ttems in the course of setilement 3691 5,726
Receivables from payment services/ngents 4935 3l
Others 38 1%
Total other financial assets 4,244 6,155
Other non-financial asgets:
Prepayments for taxes 1,666 u37
Prepayments for intangihle asgers 100 114
Prepayments for serviees 6 44
Prepayments for prapedy and equipment 12 151
Others 20 75
Total other non-financinl assets 1,864 1,323
Total other assets 6,108 7.378
LOANS AND DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Due 1o Azerbaijan Mortgage and Credil Guarantee Fund 63.671 28,068
Depaosits from other banks and linancial institutions 1,199 12,209
[.oans from the CRAR 2.442 2,356
Total loans and deposits from hanks and financial institutions 78,312 42.633

As at December 31, 2023, AZN 65,671 thousand (December 31, 2022: AZN 28,068 thousand) out of loans
fram financial instilutions represented funds borrowed from the Azerbaijan Mortgage and Credit Guarantee
Fund, for granting long-term mortgage loans to individuals, Under this program, funds made available to the
Bank at an interest rate of 1-4% p.a. and the Bank further on lends these funds to eligible borrowers at rates
not higher than 8% p.a. These borrowings mature between 2024 and 2052,

Deposits from other banks and financial institutions carry 3% interest rate per annum as at December 31, 2023
(December 31, 2022: 3% per annum),

The loans from the CBAR carry 3.7% interest rate per annum as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022;
3.7% per annum), are secured, and payable up to demand. When repayment is due, the CBAR has the right to
deduct the borrowed amount from the Bank's correspondent account in the CBAR without informing the
Banlk.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{in thousands of AZN, uniess ctherwise indicated)

As at December 21, 2023 and 2022, accrued interest expense included in loans and deposits from banks and
financial institutions amounted to AZN 319 thousand and AZN 145 thousand, respectively.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of loans and deposits from banks and financial
institutions with relevant cash and non-cash changes from financing activities is stated below:

2023 2022

January 1 42,633 37,520
Cash flows

Proceeds 32,453 36,437
Repayment (31.894) (30.856)
Interest paid (1,596) (1,845)
Nuon-cash changes

Interest expense 1,770 1,377
Transfler of loun portiolio of other bank* 34,948 -
December 31 78,312 42,633

*As disclosed in Note 8, during the year ended December 31, 2023, the mortgage loans in the amount of
AZN 34,948 were transferred from Muganbank OJSC as a result of the termination of later’s bank license.

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

December 31, December 31,

023 2022
Term deposits 253,094 251,366
Current accounts 171,393 208,820
Accrued interest expense on deposits 657 613
Total deposits lrom cusiomers 425,149 460,799

Term deposits

Term deposits are unsecured and carry interest rales ranging from 0.1% to 9% per annum as at
December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022: 1% to 10% per annum).

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank has 5 customers (December 31, 2022: 5 customers), whose balances
exceeded 10% of equity, The total amount of these balances as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 was
AZN 311,727 thousand and AZN 353,076 thousand.

Included in amounts due to customers in the amount of AZN 38,447 thousand and AZN 43 480 thousand as
at December 21, 2023 and 2022, respectively are deposits and current accounts secured by the Azerbaijan
Dreposit Insurance Fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER: 31, 2023 {Continued)

{in thousands of AZN, unlass otherwise indicated)

Analysis by industry for deposits from customers

Individuals

Transport and communication
Trade

Others

Tutal deposits from customers

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities:
Lease liahilities

Ttems mn the course of settlement
CGuarantes abilities

(thers

Tuotal other financial liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities
Payable to siate-owned organizations

Total other non-financial liabilities

Total other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Currcot portion
Non-current partion

Total lease liabilities

December 31, 2023
Minimum lease paymenis
Finance charges

Net present value

December, 31,

December 31,

1023 2022
331.496 330,256
81,190 111.245
11,620 0,772
B43 326
425,149 460,799
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
7,068 2,764
4.022 6,230
2,583 2,044
540 500
14,211 11,552
153 244
153 244
14,364 11,796
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
2,052 1,902
5,014 BOT
7,066 2,769
Within 1 Between 1 Total
year und 5 years
2,137 6,219 8.154
(85) (1.205) {1,290)
2,052 5014 7066
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Within 1 Between 1 Total
year and 5 years
December 31, 2022
Minimum lease payments 2078 1.162 3,240
Finance charges {176) {295) {471)
Net present value 1,902 867 2,769

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of lzase liabilities with relevant cash and non-cash

changes from financing activities is stated below:

2023 2022
January | 2.769 3,79
Cash Mows
Repayment of principal {1,655) {1.325)
Imterest paid 451 (A3l
Non-cash changes
Interest expanse 451 631
New lease 336 112
Modification 5,746 183
Derecognition (130 -
December 31 7066 2,769

Guarantee liahilities

Guarantee liabilities are measured at the higher of their amortized amount and the amount of allowance for

expected credit loss.

Guaramiee linhilities

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Accrued interest on guarantees 147 - - 147
Allowance for ECL on guarantees (2.730) - - (2,730)
Carrying amount as at December 31,
2023 (2.583) - - {2,583)
Guarantee liabilities
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Accrued inlerest on guaraniees 106 - - 106
Allowance for ECL on puarantees (2,150) - (2.1500
Carrying amount as at December 31,
2022 (2,044) - - (2,044)
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The movement in the expected credit loss (ECL) for guarantees issued as at December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 Tatal
As at January 1, 2023 (2,150) - - (2,150)
Guaraniees derecognized 25 - 25
New puarantess originated or purchased IELEY - {404
Net remeasurement of allowance for expected
credit Josses (201) - (201)
As at December 31, 2023 (2,730) - - {2,730}

The movement in the expected credit loss {ECL) for guarantees issued as at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Total

As at January 1, 2022 (3.139) - - (3,139)

Guarantees derecognized 1,596 - - 1,596

Mew guarantees originated or purchased (127) - - (127)
Net remeasurement of allowance for expected

credit losses (480} - - (450)

As at December 31, 2022 (2,150) - - (2.150)

The following table provides information on collateral securing guarantee liabilities by types of collateral

as at December 31, 2023,

Accrued Allowance Carrying Cash and Immovable Total
interest for ECL amount deposits property
Transportation - {1,533) (1,533) - -
Construction 147 i(841) (694) -
Trading and
service - (356) (356) 52 283 335
147 (2,730) 2,583) 52 283 335

The following table provides information on collateral securing guarantee liabilities by types of collateral

as at December 31, 2022,

Accrued Allowance Carrying Cash and Immaovahble Total
interest for ECL amount deposits property
Transpartation - (1.213) (1,213) - -
Construction 106 (774) {668) 200 200
Trading and
service - i163) {163) - 250 230
106 (2,150) (2,044) 200 250 450
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless othernwise indicated)

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized, issued and outstanding share capital comprises 1,003,905 ordinary shares as at
December 31, 2023 {December 31, 2022: 1,003,905). All shares have a nominal value of AZN 154 per

share.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to ome vote per share ar annual and general mestings of the Banl.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, dividends in the amount of AZN 10,120 thousand were declared

and paid (December 31, 2022: AZN 4,890 thousand).

NET INTEREST INCOME

Imterest income

Interest en loans and advances to customers
Inicrest on cash and cash equivalents
Interest on guarantees issued

Total interest income

Interest cxpense

Inierest on deposiis from cusiomers

Interest on loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions
Interest on lease liahilities

Total inlerest expense

Total net interest income

NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

Dealing, net
Translation differences; net

Total net gain on foreign exchange operations

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Plastic card operations

Settlements

Cash operations

Transactlons with foreipn currencies
Tax free operations

(ugrantee commission

Hhers

Total fee and commission income

42

December 31, December 31,
2023 012

26,899 28.533
3.682 932
1,114 1.194
31,695 30.670
(B.927) (B.566)
(17700 {1.377)
(451} {631)
(11.148) (10,574}
20,547 2,105

December 31,

December 31,

2023 022
2,568 3086
1% 32
2,586 3118
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
8819 3Tl
1.690 1.980
1,566 1.416
1,394 2,060
1.220 Gl6
78 112
406 331
IS\.I'T-‘F_ 14,886
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unfess otherwize indicated)

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Plastic card operations
Settlements

Cash operations
Guarantee commission
Others

Tatal fee and commission expense

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of property, equipment and right-of-use assets
Amortization of intangible asscts

Total depreciation and amortization expense

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Advertising and marketing expenses
Persunnel expenses

Software costs

Business (ravel and related expenses
Insurance expenses

Securily expenses

OfTiee supplies

Communication expenses

Legal and professional fees

Repairs and maimenance expenses
Taxes other than income tax

Kent expenses

Vehicle running cests

Utility expenses

Others

Total administrative and general expenses

RECOVERY/(CHARGE) OF EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Recoveryeharge) of expected credit fosses an loans and advances (o
cUstomers

{(Chargedrecovery of expected credit lasses on guarantees issued

Recovery of expected credit losses on balances with other banks

Total recovery/{charge) of expected credit losses on financial assets
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(8,125) (5.893)
[GERN (862)
(243) -
(6¥] (97)
(236) (319)
(9,353) (7.171)
December 31, December 31,
2023 022
(2.219) (1,922)
{436) (318)
(2.655) (2,240
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(7.731) {B.029)
(6.911) {6,324)
{1,172) (760
(586) (703)
(4860) (356)
{457 (449
{444) (304
(2900 (2700
(224) (176)
(223) (226)
(86) (95)
(68) (78)
{65) (94)
{49) (48)
{25) (24}
(18,792) (18.071)
December 31, December 31,
2023 022
2,805 (3.692)
{580) 289
176 92
2.401 (1,777
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In ihousands of AZN, unless olherwise indicated)

TAXATION

Azerbaijan commercial and tax legislation in particular may give rise to varying interpretations and
amendments. In addition, as management's interprefation of tax legislation may differ from that of the tax
authorities, transaction may be challenged by the tax authorities. and as a result the Bank may be assessad
for additional tax, penalties and interest. The management believes that the Bank is in substantial compliance
of'tax lepislation.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Current income 1ax gxpense (2,073) (3.176)
Deferred income tax (expense)benefit recognized in the current year (159) 1,186
Revision of prior period tax estimate {642) =
Income tax expense (2.876) {1.990)
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Profit before income tax 9,932 8932
Theoretical tax charge at the statutory tax rate 20% (1.986] (1,786)
Tax effeet of permanent differences {248) (204)
Revision of prior period tax estimale {642) -
Income tax expense (2.876) (1,990

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Movements in temporary differences during the yvears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as

follows:
Jannary 1, {Debited)/ December 31,
2023 credited to 2023
profit or loss
Loans and advances o cuslomers 2.074 [423) 631
Property, equipment and right-of-use nisety 40935 289 T84
Balanees with other banks (256) 219 (77)
Onher labilitics (188) (244} (432}
Net deferred income tax asset 2,085 (15%) 1,926
Janunary 1, Credited/ December 31,
022 (debited) to 2022
profit or loss
Loans and advances to cuslomers 4946 1.578 2,074
Property, equipment and right-of-use assets 242 253 495
Balances with other banks - (2496) [296)
Other liakilitics 161 {349) (188)
Net deferred income tax asset 899 1.186 2,085
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23

RELATED PARTIES

The Bank in the normal course of business carries on business with other entities that fall within the
definition of related party contained in IFRS as issued by the [ASB. These transactions are carried out in the
normal course of business and are measured at exchange amoumts, being the amounts agreed by both the
parties. For the purpose of these financial statements, entities are considered to be related to the Bank if it
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over the entities in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Bank and other entity is subject to commen control or
significant influence, key management personnel and other related parties. Details of related party

transactions entered into during the year are set out below.

Amounis included in the statement of financial position

Loans and advances to customers

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2021
Ouistanding principal
{a) Sharehalders 4,386 4.109
(b} Entities under common control 8,963 7,293
(c) Key management personnel 45 22
(d}) Other related parties 1,710 1,588
15,104 13.012
Accrued inferest income
(2) Sharchnlders 10 9
(b) Entities under commuon control 14 58
() Other related parties 4 G
31 73
Allowance for expected eredit losses
(a) Shareholders [52) -
(h) Emtities under common contral 15) -
(d) Other related parties (6} (4]
(63) (2)
Total 15,072 13.083
Property, equipment and right-of-use assets
December 31, December 31,
2023 1022
Righi-ol-use asseis
(a) Sharehoalders 4,992 1.940
Total 4,992 1.%40
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Deposits from customers

Term deposits

(a) Shareholders

{v) Kev management personnel
(d) Other related parties

Currenl accounts

(2) Shareholders

(b) Entities under comman control
(¢) Key management personnel
(d) Other related parties

Accrued interest expense om lerm deposits
(a) Shareholders
(d) Other related partics

Total

Other liabilities

Guaranlee liabilities
{h} Entities under common contral

Lease liabilities
{a) Shareholders

Tatal

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income

Interest income

{(a) Sharcholders

{b) Entities under commaon control
(c) Kev management personnel
(d) Other refated parties

Total

Interest expense
(a) Shureholders
(d) Other related parties

Total

46

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
213,980 219329
20 -
1,020 2074
215,026 221,403
33,508 318.550
714 68
47 46
343 71
34,612 19,335
27 577
I 2
628 579
260,266 261.317
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
179 124
179 124
5,265 2,559
5,265 1.559
5,444 2683
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
248 127
711 712
9 3
103 97
1,071 939
(&314) (8.263)
(43) [1om
(8,357) (8,363)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(It thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

Administrative and general expenses
(&) Sharcholders

(b Entities under common contral

(¢) Key management personnel

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense
(a) Shareholders

Total

Off-balance

Guarantees issued
(b} Entities under common control

Total

Unused credit lines

{a) Shareholders

{b) Entities under commaon control
{c) Key management personnel
{d) Other related partics

Total

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(7.915) {8,384)
(450) (387)
(212} (845)
(9.277) 9.616)
(1,034} (1.217)
(1,034) (1.217)
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
6,437 3,495
6,437 3.495
4.301 1,257
107 3,727
33 14
198 192
4,659 5,190

In the normal course of business, the Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in order
to meet the need of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit risk. are not reflected
in the statement of financial position. The Bank uses the same credit control and management policies in
undertaking off-balance sheet contingent liabilities and commitments as it does for on-balance sheet operations.

Guarantees issued
Unused credit lines

Total

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
54.884 43,732
7.666 10,600
62,550 54,312

ECL for guarantees issued is disclosed in Note 13. At the reporting date, the Bank has no major capital

commitments (December 31, 2022 nil),
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Operating environment

The Bank’s operations are conducted in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The Bank is exposed to the economic
and financial markets of Azerbaijan which display characteristics of an emerging market. The legal, tax and
regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject to varying interpretations and frequent
changes which together with other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities
operating in Azerbaijan.

Azerbaijan economy also has a significant exposure 1o level of international energy prices. Crude ail prices
increased in the first half of the year because of supply concerns however starling from the second half of
the year oil prices gencrally decreased as concerns about a possible economic recession reduced demand.
The Brent crude oil spot price averaged USD 100 per barrel in 2022, Strong oil prices supported economic
growth of the country,

The depreciation of Azerbaijani Manatin 2015-2016 years has led to significant uncertainties in the business
environment, therefore government took all required actions to keep the exchange rate stable over the past
7 years. As a result, continuous fluctuation in global oil prices did not affect the local currency and therefore
did not increase the uncertainty in the business environment.

The economy of Azerbaijan expanded 1.1 percent vear-on-year in January-December period 2023, slowing
from a 4.6 % growth in the same period last vear. The non-oil & gas sector increased by 3.7 %. while the
oil & gas sector contracted 1.7 %. From the production side, the strongest contributions came from industry
(40.5 %) and retail trade (10 %). Additional support was seen in transportation & storage (6.2%) and
consiruction (6.2 o).

The sustainability of the cease-fire arrangement over the Karabakh region also improves the husiness
environment as there are number of government-led projects to attract investment and develop the territories
released from occupation.

GDP reached AZN 123 hillion (UISD 72.4 hillion) in 2023 with |.1% growth compared to 2022, During the
¢leven months of 2023 foreign trade turnover of the Republic of Azerbaijan reached about USD 41.2 billion
of which export amounted 1o USD 25.4 billion and import amounted USD 15.8 hillion according to the
statistics of the State Customs Committee. Inflation rate decreased from 13.9% in December 2022 to 8.8%
in December 2023,

By the end of December 2023 number of active plastic cards increased to a historic high of 16,9235 thousand
compared 10 13,237 thousand in 2022,

International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate the credit rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan, “Fitch”
and “S&P" evaluated the rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan as “BB+". “Moody's [nvestors Service” set
a “Bal™ credit rating for the country.

The Tuture economic growth of the Republic of Azerbaijan is largely dependent upon the effectiveness of
economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together with tax, legal,
regulatory and political developments, The Management is unable to predict, all developments in the economic
environment which would have an impact on the Bank’s operations and consequently what effect, if any, they
eould have on the financial position of the Bank.
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Capital adequacy ratin

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
amounts and ratios of toral and tier | capital to risk weighted assets. The capital to risk weighted assets ratio
was calculated in accordance with the guidelines issued by regulator on capital adequacy using the principles
employed by the Basel Committes by applying following risk estimates to the assets and off-balance sheet
commitments nat of allowances for impairment losses,

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
{unaudited) (unaudited)

Tier 1 eapital before deductions
Share capital 154,601 154,601
Retained earnings — as per prudential regulation 5375 10,029
Deduetions
Intangible assets (1,665) (1,812}
Total tier 1 capital 158,311 162,818
Tier Z capital
Reserves 5,223 7.434
Current year prefit 7,452 ) 5,466
Total tier 2 capital 12.675 12,904
Total regulatory capital held 170,986 175,718
Total risk-weighted assets 437,958 615,080
Tier 1 capital ratio {%) 36.15% 26.47%
Capital adeguacy ratio (%) 39.04% 28.57%

The minimum requirement is 5% for tier 1 capital ratio (December 31, 2022: 5%) and 10% for capital
adequacy ratio (December 31, 2022: 10%),

30
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Assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position measured at fair value are grouped into three
levels of fair value hierarchy. This Banking is determined based on the lowest level of significant inputs
used in fair value measurement, as follows:

s Level I: quoted prices {unadjusted) in aclive markets [or identical agsets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liahility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observahle market data (unobservable
inputs).

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities as at
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2023
Assets for which lair values are

disclosed:
Cash and balances with the CBAR 171,174 - - 171,176
Ralances with other banks - - 38 SR8 38.588
Loans and advances 10 customers - - 450,147 450,147
Oither financial assets - - 4,244 4244
Liahilities for which fair values are

disclosed:
Louns and deposits from banks

and financial instilwtions - - 78,312 78,312
Deposits from customers - - 425,144 425,149
Other financial liahilities - - 14,211 14,211

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

December 31, 2022
Assets for which lair values are

disclosed:
Cash and balances with the CBAR E3012 - - 85,912
Balances with other banks - - 165.351 165,351
Loans and advanees 1o sustomers - - 411,779 411,379
Orther financial assets - - b h55 60053
Liabilities for which fair values are

disclosed:
Loans and deposits from banks

and financial institulions - - 42,633 42,633
Depaosits from customers - . 460,799 4al0,799
Other financial liabilities - - 11.552 11,552

Risk management objectives and policies

The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The
core functions of the Bank’s risk management are to identify all key risks for the Dank, measure these risks.
manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations. The Bank regularly reviews its risk managerment
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice. The Bank’s aim is to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank’s
financial performance. The Bank defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be
caused by internal or external factors.
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AN LSD EUR Other Toial
December 31, 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the CBAR 58246 23,274 3,505 887 83912
Dalances with other banks 15,022 105,545 37,794 6990 165351
Loans and advances to customers 187.277 224,502 - - 41779
Other financial assets 4,238 1.431 379 7 6,035
Total financial assets 264,783 354,752 41,678 7,884 669,097
Financial liabilities:
Loans and deposits rom banks and finaneial institutions 36,532 098 2 1 42,633
Deposits from costomers 78,305 333,706 40,644 8.144 460,709
Other financial liabilitics 3,661 4488 1403 - 11,552
Total financial labilities 120,498 344,292 42,049  B.145 514984
Open currency position 144,285 10,460 (371) (261) 154.113

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit(loss) before tax and equity in regard to the Bank's
financial assets and financial liabilities and the USD/AZN exchange rate and EUR/AZN exchange rate “all
other things being equal™. It assunies a £10% change of the USD/AZN exchunge rate for the year ended at
December 31. 2023 (December 31, 2022: =10%). A £10% change is considered for the EUR/AZN exchange
rate (December 31, 2022: =10%}. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Bank's foreign currency financial
instruments held at each reporting date.

If the AZN had weakened against the USD by 10% (December 31, 2022: 10%) and EUR by 10%
(December 31, 2022: 10%) respectively then this would have had the following impact:

Profit before income tax Equity
USD EUR Other USD ELUR Other
December 31, 2023 567 30 L1 453 24 9
December 31, 2022 1.046 (37) (26) 837 (30) (21)

If the AZN had strengthened against the USD by 10% (December 31, 2022: 10%) and EUR by 10%
(December 31, 2022; 10%) respectively then this would have had the following impact;

Profit before income fnx Equity
sD EUR Other usn EUR Other
December 31, 2023 (56T (30) {11 (433) {24) (2
December 31, 2022 (1.046) 7 20 (837) £l 21

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions,
Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Bank's exposure to foreign currency
risk.

Interest rate risk
Cash Mow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in marker interest rates.
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The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
both its fair valuc and cash flow risks. [nterest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Supervisory Board sets limits on the level
of mismatch of interest rale re-pricing and value at risk that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily
by Risk Management Specialist,

The table on below page illustrates the sensitivity of profit/(loss) before tax and equity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of +1% (December 31, 2022: +£1%;). These changes are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of eurrent market conditions. The calculations are based on a
change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the interest-bearing financial instruments
held at each reporting date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

Profit before income tax Equity

December 31, 2023
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the CBAR 350 (330} 280 {2R0)
Balances with other hanks 331 (331 265 (263)
Loang and advances to customers 4501 (4,501) 3,601 (3.601)
Financial liabilities:
Louns and deposits from banks and financial

institutions (76l 760 (60R) 608
Deposits firom customers {2,338) 2,538 (2,030) 2,030
Other liabilities {96) 96 (717} 77

1,788 {1,788) 1,431 (1.431)
Profit before income tax Equity

December 31, 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the CBAR 250 (230 200 (2000
Balances with other hanks 1.600 (1.60%) 1,287 (1.287)
Loans and advances 1o customers 4,118 (£.118) 3,294 (3.294)
Financial liahilities;
Loans and deposits from banks and financial

institutions [383) 383 {306) 06
Deposits from customers (2.520) 2.520 (2.016) 2016
Other liabilities (48) 48 {38) I8

3026 (3.026) 1421 (2421)
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

Credir risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform an obligation
or its ability 1o perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the Bank. The Bank
attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter
partics and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counter parties,

The focus of the Bank’s commercial lending continues to be short-term trade related financing on a secured
and sclf=liquidating basis. The Bank will alse continue its emphasis on diversification of its assets to avert
large single industry or Bank exposure. A significant portion of loans is extended to related parties and the
management considered minimal credit risk for these financing,.

The Bank has built and maintained a sound loan portfolio in terms of a well-defined credit policy. The
Bank's credit cvaluation system comprises of well-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review
procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in its lending activities and ensuring quality of asset
portiolio. Special attention is paid to the management of non-performing loans. A “watch list” procedure is
also functioning which identifies loans showing early warning signals of becoming non-performing.

The Bank is further diversifying its asset portfolie by offering, Consumer Banking Products (Personal
Finance, Business Firance, Mortgage Finance and Auto Financing etc.) to its customers, as it provides better
margins than traditional business lending opportunities, whilst spreading the risk over a large number of
individual customers,

The Bank has developed an internal rating model, which allows it to determine the rating of counterparties.
The rating of corporate borrowers is based on an analysis of the financial ratios of the borrower, and an
analysis of the market and industry sector, in which the borrower operates. The model also takes into
consideration various qualitative factors, such as management efficiency and borrower’s market share.

The application of the internal rating model results in a standardized approach in the analysis of corporate
borrowers and provides a quantitative assessment of the creditworthiness of a borrower that does not have
a rating from an international rating agency. The model takes into account specific lncal market conditions.

The quality of the internal rating model is examined on a regular basis through an assessment of both its
elfectiveness and validity. The Bank revises the model when deficiencies are identified,

The Bank applies internal rating methodologies to specific corporate loans and Banks of retail and small
business loans, which incorporate various underlying master scales that are different [rom those used by
international rating agencies. As a result, it is not possible to make a cross-product score comparison which
would agree to the outstanding balance of Joans to customers per the statement of financial position. As
such, more detailed information is not being presented,

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its financial assets and contingent liabilities.
The credit risk exposure of the Bank is concentrated within the Azerbaijan Republic. The exposure is
monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines established by
the Bank’s risk management policy are not breached,

The following table details the gross carrying value of financial assets and those that are impaired:

Gross carrying  Allowance for  Net carrying

amount ECL amount
December 31, 2023
Cash and balances with the CBAR 171,176 - 171,176
Balances with other banks 34,584 - 38,588
Loans and advances 1o customers 474,230 (24.083) 450,147
Other financial assets 4244 g 4,244
Total 688,238 (24.083) 664,155
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)

(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise (fidicated)

December 31, 2022

Cash and balances with the CBAR
Balances with other banks

Loans and advances (o cuslomers
Oiher financizl assets

Total

Net exposure of credit risk

Gross carrying

Allowance for

Met carrving

amannt ECL amount
85,912 - 83912
165,527 (176) 165,351
438.514 (26.735) 411,779
6,033 - 6,055
696,008 (26.911) 669,097

The Banks net exposure 1o eredit risk varies significantly and is dependent on both individual risks and

general market economy risks.

The following table presents the net exposure to credit risk of on-halance sheet and off-balance sheet
financial assets. For financial assets in the statement of financial position, the net exposure is equal 1o the
carrying amount of those assets prior to any collateral. The Bank’s net exposure to credit risk under
contingent liahilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event of non-performance by the other party
where all counterclaims, collateral or security prove valueless, is represented by the contractual amonunts of

those instruments,

December 31, 2023

Cash and balances with the CBAR
Ralances with other banks

Loans and advances 1o customers
Oither financial assets

Guarantees issued

Unused credit lines

Total

December 31, 2022

Cash snd balances wilh the CBAR
Balances with other banks

Leans and advances 1o cuslomers
Other linuncial assels

Cluagraniecs 1ssued

Unused eredil lines

Total

Off-balance sheet risk

Expuosure Giross callateral Net
before pledged exXposure
collateral
171,176 - 171,176
38.588 - 3R.588
450,147 (424.881) 23,266
4.244 - 4244
54884 (335) 34,549
1.666 - 7,666
726,705 (425.216) 301,489
Exposure Gross collateral Net
before pledged expusure
collateral
83,912 - B5,912
163,351 - 165,351
411,779 {261,773) 150,004
6,055 - 6,055
43,732 {430) 43,282
10,600 - 10,600
723,419 (262,215) 461,204

The Bank applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for off-balance sheet risks as it does
for its on-halance sheet risks. In the case of commitments to lend, customers and counterparties will be
subject 10 the same credit management policies as for loans and advances. Collateral mav be sought
depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of the transaction,



“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
{!n thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicatad)

Risk limit control and mitigatiun policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified — in
particular, to individual counterparties and Banks, and to industries and countries. The Bank structures the
levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepred in relation to one borrower,
or Banks of borrowers. and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to
an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product,
industry sector are approved by the Board of Directors. Actual exposures against limits are monitored
regularly, Lending limits are reviewed in the light of changing market and economic conditions and periodic
credit reviews and assessments of probability of default. Some other specific control and mitigation
measures are outlined below:

Collateral

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty,
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of tvpes of collateral and valuation parameters. The
main types of collateral obtained are as follows;

»  For commercial lending, charges over real estate properties, moveahle assets, deposits and guarantess; and
* For retail lending, mortgages over residential properties and moveable assets.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of eollateral obtained during its review of the
adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

Lending limits

The Bank maintains strict control limits over its lending to customers. This credit risk exposure is managed
as part of the overall lending limits with customers and is approved by the Credit Committee and nltimately
by the Supervisory Board of the Bank. Collateral or other security is not always obtained for credit risk
exposures an loans to customers and therefore the Bank is exposed to settlement risk on the uncollateralized
portion of the loans.

Financial covenants (for credit related commitments)

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to & customer as required,
Guarantees carry the same credit risk as loans. Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans or guarantees. With respect to eredit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However. the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments {o
extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards {often referred to as
financial covenants). The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a result of
customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other cash
outflows, such as debt maturities. Such outflows would deplete available cash resources for client lending
and investments. In extreme eircumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the statement of
financial position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfil lending commitments, The risk that
the Bank will be unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of
institution-specific and market-wide events including, but not limited to, credit events, systemic shocks and
natural disasters. The Supervisory Board monitors the maintenance of statement of financial position
liquidity ratios, depositors' concentration both in terms of the overall f unding mix and avoidance of undue
reliance on large individual deposits and liquidity contingency plans, Moreover, core retail deposits (current
accounts and saving accounts) form a considerable part of the Bank’s overall funding and significant
importance is attached to the stability and growth of these deposits,
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“PREMIUM BANK"” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless othenwise inoicaled)

Management believes that the related party deposits will subsequently be prolonged for a further period,
which will cover the liguidity gap arising at the end of the year,

Operational risk

The Bank’s operational risk is related to possible losses which may be incurred as a result of failures
occurring in the Bank's day-to-day operations, such as hreakdown in elecironic and telecommunication,
routings or other systems - additional factors being insufficient levels of professional skills or human errors.
In order to keep the Bank’s operational risks to a minimum level, various tools are used to manage
operational risk using a common categorization of risk,

The Bank’s appreach to operational risk is not desipned to eliminate risk, rather. to contain it within the
acceptable levels, as determined by senior management, and to ensure that they have sufficient information
to make informed decisions about additional controls. adjustments to contrels, or other risk responses.

Concentration of financial instruments

The majority of concentration of financial assets and liabilities related to banking activities is within the
boundaries of Azerbatjan Republic. The following is the deail of geographical concentration of financial
instruments:

Azerbaijan CIs Other Total
Republic countries countries

December 31, 2023
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the CHAR 171,176 - - 171,176
Balances with other banks 10,772 16,946 10,870 38.588
Loans and advances to customers 412,447 37.700 - 450,147
Other financial assels 4.244 - = 4.244
Total financial assets 508,639 54,646 10,870 664,155
Financial liabilities:
Loans and deposits from banks and [inancial

institutions 78312 - - 78312
Deposits from custamers 421,290 2,058 1.801 425,149
Other financial Liahilities 14.211 - - 14.211
Total financial liabilities 513,813 2,058 1,801 517.672
Net geographical gap 84,826 52,558 9,069 146,483

Azerbaijan Cl1s Other Total
Republic countries countries

Necember 31, 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the CBAR 85.912 - - 45,012
Balances with other banks 156,201 6531 2,619 165,351
Loans and advances to customers 374.627 37,152 - 411.779
Other financial assets 0,055 - - 6,035
Total financial assets 622,795 43,683 2.619 669,097
Financial linbilities:
Loans und deposits rom banks and financial

institutions 42,633 - - 42.633
Deposits from customers 457.742 2,108 944 460,799
Other financial liahilities 11,552 - - 11,552
Total financial liahilities 811,927 2,108 949 514,984
Net geopraphical gap 110,868 41,575 1670 154,113
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“PREMIUM BANK” OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (Continued)
(In thousands of AZN, unless otherwise indicated)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

December 31, Decemhber 31.
2023 2022
Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Bank 7.056 6.942
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted carnings per share 1,004 1,004
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 7.03 6.91

POST-REPORTING DATE EVENTS

On January 18, 2024, Mr. Kamil Latifov has heen appointed as a Chairman of the Management Board of

the Bank.

On January 18. 2024, Mr. Mahir Najafov has been appointed as a Deputy Chairman of the Management

Board of the Bank,

On February 1. 2024, March 29. 2024 and May 2, 2024 the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan
decreased the refinancing rate from 8% 1o 7.75%, from 7.75% 1o 7.5%, and from 7.5% to 7.25%

respectively.



